BSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No.10,12th Floor, Tower-C, Telephone: +31 124 719 1000
DLF Cyber City, Phase-, Fax: +81 124 2358613

Gurugram — 122 002, India
e Pt ,—L,F. o B ,.-,;'5 R ] ale -
TCEPENCENT ALCHOrS Report

To the Members of SAMH] JV Business Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited (the “Company™
which comprise the halance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income}, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other
comprehensive ioss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

' Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Charered Accountants of india
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

" Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 42 to the financial statements, which explains the management's assessment
of going concern assumption and financial impact on account of COVID-19 pandemic situation and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company wili continue as a going concern Le.
continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for the foreseeable
future.

Cur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are rasponsible for the other information. The other
infarmation comprises the information included in the Company's directars’ repon, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ¥,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information, we are required to repont that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Auditor's Responaibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

BSR&Co LLP

independent Auditor's Report (Continuad)

SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Limited

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 132 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are respensible for
assessing the Gompany's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to fiquidate the Company or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise fromt fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to previde a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting frem error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentienal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controf.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)()) of the Act, we are also raesponsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going cancern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disciosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
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BSR&Co. LLP

independent Auditor's Report (Continted)

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our apinion, proper baoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examinaticn of those baoks.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income}, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to finandial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B",

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our apinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 46 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities {"Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Gompany (“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or
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BSR&Co. LLP

independent Auditors Report (Continued)
SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Limited

> provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} The management has reprasented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 47 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, inciuding foreign entities {'"Funding Parties™, with the
understanding, whether recordad in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

*  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasanable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ji) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect 10 the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration has
been paid or payable by the Company 1o its directors during the current year and accordingly, the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

FocrBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/WW-100022
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w@ikram Advani

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 14 September 2022 ICAI UDIN: 22091765ASDQMB3762
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexura A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Siatements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for  the vear  ended
31 March 2022

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (&) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

B)
(1) (b)

©

(e

{ii) (@)

(0

(i)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physicai verification
ofits Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in period of three years. In accardance with this programme, all property, plant and eguipment
were physically verified during the year ended 31 March 2021. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company. However, original title deeds are under lien
with debenture trustee for the non- convertible debentures issued by the Company during the
current year. Therefore, we couid not verify those title deeds and have not received independent
confirmation from the debenture trustee.

Accerding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Flant and Eguipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 46 to the financial statements.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year, In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned warking capitai limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from financial institution on the basis of security of
current assets. As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letters of such !imits, there
are no requirements on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with the financial
institution,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, or provided
guarantee or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, imited liability partnership or
any other parties during the year. The Company has provided security and has granted ioans
to companies during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The
Company has not provided any security or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to limited
liability partnership or any other parties during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided security and loans to other entities as below:
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annaxure A o the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
aof SAMHU JY Business Hotels Private Limited for the year anded
21 March 2022 (Continued)

{c)

{d

(v)

Particulars Security Loans [Nominal
(Rs.in thousand) amounfi]
{Rs. in thousand)

Aggregate amount during the year
Holding Company*

- 903,543
Others (fellow subsidiary) 2,850,000 -

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date

Holding Company* - 1,988,861
Cthers (fellow subsidiary) 2,850,000 -

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
canducted by us, in our opinion the security given during the year and the terms and conditions
of the grant of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interast of
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated except for the interest free loan {as at 31
March 2022) of Rs. 1,055,704 thousand [nominal amount] given to SAMHI Hotels Limited
(holding company), which is repayable after 31 December 2030 as per mutual consent of the
Company and SAMH! Hotels Limited. As informed to us, no repayment of loans and payment
of interest was due in the current year. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the
nature of lean to any party during the year.

According to the infermation and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Campany, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According ta the information and explanations given te us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the averdues of existing loans given
to same parties.

Accoarding to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guaraniee as specified under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of security provided and
lcans granted by the Company, the provisions of Section 185 of the Act have heen complied
with. The Company has complied with Section 188(1) of the Act. According to the information
and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 (except for sub-section {1} of the
Section 186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicabie to the Company since the Company
is engaged in the business of praviding infrastructural facilities.
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Annexure A o the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
af SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended
31 WMarch 2022 (Continued)

(v)

{vi)

{vii) (a)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and expianations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost recards under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
rendered or goods sold by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicabie.

The Company does not have liahility in respact of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted ! accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have
been siight delays in a few cases of Income tax and Pravident fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Empioyees State insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess and
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

l Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Due Date of
statute the dues (Rs. in which the date payment
thousand) | amount relates
The Employees' | Provident 292 | March 2019 15  April | Not yet
Provident Funds | fund 2019 paid
and (Additional
Miscellaneous liability due
Provisions to Supreme
Act, 1952 Court
Judgement )
| Central  Goods | Interest 678 | April 2021 - | 20 Not  yet
© and Services Tax | liability on August 2021 Septemb | Paid
Act, 2017 and | Goods and er 2021
State Goods and | Services
Services Tax Act, | Tax
{2017

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, tncome-Tax, Value Added tax, Cess and other statutory
dues which have not been depeosited on account of any dispute are as follows:
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Annexurs A fo the Independent Auditors Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(viii)

(ix) (2)

{c)

(d)

(e)

0

Name of the statute | Nature ofthe | Amount {Rs. Period to Forum
dues in Thousand) which the where
amount dispute is
relates (FY) pending
Finance Act, 1594 Excess 89,283 2014-15to Commission
; ' i i - f Goods
Service tax availment of {including 2017-18 ero
( ) CENVAT credit | interest) and
and short Services
payment of Tax
service tax {Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. During the current year, the
Company has refinanced its term loans {including interest accrued) obtained from PHL Fininvest
Private Limited through issuance of non convertible debentures to Sarvara investment Fund |.

- According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulier by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given fo us and on an overall examination of the
balance shieet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purpases by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or jeint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022, Accordingly, clause 3({ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingiy, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x}(a) of the Order is not applicabte.

Accerding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x){b} of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given fo us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit,

According to the informaticn and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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Aniexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Stateinents
of 3AMH JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the vear ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

{c)

(xii)

{xiii)

(xiv} (a)

(xv)

{xvi} (a)

{c)

(d)

(xvii}

{xviii)

{xix)

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According te the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3({xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and exptanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details regarding such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by applicable accounting standards. Being a wholly owned
subsidiary company of public imited company, the requirements of Section 177 of the Act of
having an Audit Commitiee are not applicable.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of is
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable,

The Company is not part of any group {as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3{xvi){d} are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 491,804 thousand in the current financial year
and Rs 440,461 thousand in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 42 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous ysar and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2022. Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2022
by Rs. 5,773 thousand.

The note also explains the management's assessment of gaing concern assumption and
financial impact on account of COVID-19 pandemic situation and its assertion that based on
best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going concern i.e. continue its
operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for the foreseeable
future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on the
basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assats and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is nat capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Stalemenis
of SAMHI MV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended

31 March 2022 (Continued)

fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facis up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx}(a) and 3(xx){b} of the Order are not applicable.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 September 2022

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Charfered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:101248W/A\N-100022

*

b

Vikram Advani

4
o

s

Partner
Membership No.: 081765
ICAI UDIN: 22091765ASDQMB3762

Page 10 of 12



BSR&Co LLP

Annexure 8 {o the independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI JY Business Hotsiz Private Limited for the year snded
31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference 1o the aforesaid fnancial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2{A}f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SAMHI JV
Business Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company") as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {(the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s and Board of Dir_éc_tdrs’_’ Responsibilities for Inte_rnél Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controf stated in the
Guidance Nate. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financiai controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reffable financial information, as required under the Act.

_: Auditor's :Res__p-onsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent appiicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit epinion an the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed o

Page 11 of 12




BSR&Co LLP

Annaxure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statemenis
of SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Limited for the vear ended
31 March 2022 {Continuead)}

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
cempany's internal financial controls with reference te financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispasiticns of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financiat statemenis,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may cccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internai
financial contrals with reference to financiat statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR& Co. LLLP
Chariered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

Vikram Advani

Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 081765
Date: 14 September 2022 ICAI UDIN: 22091765ASDQMB3762
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SAMHI JV Business Hotals Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(AN mmounts ave in fudian Rupees (008), malery atherize stared)

ASSETS

Mon-current agsets
Praperty, plaut 2nd equipment
Intangible assers
Financisl assats
Loang
Other financial assets
[ncome tax assets (met)
Chher nou-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
[nvenrorics
Financial assels
Trade receivabley
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivatents above
Otfher financial assets
Other current agsets
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Bquily share capital
Other equiry

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financiai liabilities
Bomowings
Trade payables
- total cutstanding dues of mieen enlerprises and small enterprises
- total owtstanding dues of craditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises -
Onther financial liabitities
Pruvisioms
Tatal non- current liabilities

Current Hahilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings
Trade payables
- total owrstanding dues of micro enterprises and smatl enterprises
- total outstanding dires of creditors other than micro enterprises aud small
enlerprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Tatal current liahilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes from Mote | o que 48 formn an integral parl o tese tinancial statements.
As per our report of even date attachied

Far BS R & o, LLP

Chartered Accountants
[CAL Firm Registration Ne: 100248%W/W-100022

¥ikram Advani
Purtnar
Membership Mo, 09763

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 Septembar 2022

Asgat Ay al
Mofe 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
3 2,350,555 2,456,405
4 1,070 1,465
5 1,317,883 345,205
8 4,839 7,595
7 7,293 6,076
9 453 -
3,682,003 2,826,746
4] 4,552 4,759
11 26,849 8,113
12 124,264 11,0611
i3 2,924 -
14 20,458 19,409
15 31,165 L 4,460
21p,212 57,792
3,902,305 g_,§84,498
té 1,247,800 1,247,800
17 (B36,176} (1,132,775)
391,624 108,925
i9 3,264,313 2,511,727
20
28,849 -
13 877 1,264
21 857 761
3,294,696 2,513,756
22 - 36,729
23
532 -
181,636 122,829
24 12,580 23,452
25 20,437 79,355
26 R00 352
215,985 262,717
3,902,415 2,884,408

- _f Rajat fehra

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI JV Basiness Hotels Private Limited

e
N

. y.
Tanya Chakravarty ";;__A'ﬁj;na K'ujmari

Director Dhivector Comipary Secretary

DIN: 06813081 DIN: 08539291 Memberahip Mo A3S56(

Mage: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Plage: Gurugram
Dater 14 September 2022 Date: 14 September 2022 Date: 14 Septemler 2022



SAMIIL 3V Business Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{df! amounts ave in Indian Rupees (000), unless atherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total inceme

Expenses

Cost of materials consumead
Employes benefits expense
Other expenses

Totat Expenses

Profit/{Loss) before finance cost, depreciztion, amortisation and tax

Finance cosls
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Tax expense for prior year
Deferred tax

L.oss after tax

Other Comprehensive Income

fremns that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss

- Re-measurement gam/(loss) on defined benefit obligations
- Income tax relating to iterns mentioned above

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax '

Taotal comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Earaings per equity share

Neminal value of share TNR 10 [previous year INR 10]
Basic [INR]

Drijuted {INR]

The notes from Note { to Note 48 form an integral part of these financial staternents,

As per vur report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

3

L

- "

e L )

Vikram Advani ™
Partner

Membership No.: 091765

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 September 2022

For the year ended

FFor the year ended

Note 31 March 2022 31 vtarch 2021
27 PEER-EN 85,257
25 101,738 42,326
385,718 127,583
29 32,041 13,295
30 62,758 04,957
33 247,994 141,301
342,793 219,553
42,925 {21,976)
31 520,329 348,491
3z 106,245 117,711
426,574 466,202
(583,649) (558,172)
8
- [PARELY]
- 183,043
. 161,209
(583,649) (719,381}
30 (188) 4)
{188) {4)
(583,837 {719,385}
34
(4.68) {(5.77)
{4.68) (3.7

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

’
WA

Aﬂj;l a Kumari

Director
DTN: 06813081

Ptace; Gurugram
Datc: 14 September 2022

. 9‘2’ A \ '
e i '_’/ “/'.h: \Rf _.
%Eﬁ‘f ichra THnya Ghakravarty

Director
DIN: 08539291

Place: Gurugram
Date; 14 September 2022

< Company Secrefury
Membership No.: A35561

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 September 2022



SAMIHT IV Dusiness Hotels Private Limited
Siuteenenc of Cash Fluws for the year ended 31 flureh 2022
(L cmaaets are in fdian Rapees (OO0, waleiz otharwine sieted)

A Cash flews ivam operating nefivieles

Loss biefore lox

Adjusunents te secoosile Loss beluie las 16 gt vask: Juws:
Deprezialiou and aworizalion expe-se
Provision for bad and doubifil debis
Firanee cosls
Interest inenme
Loras ou foneigy exebangs Duludlivo (oel)
Mot gain oo lar vabuatios of equilty componew: ol convetible F1K obiigalivn
Gatn oo medifieation ef financiad Babililies
Giovernment granl wriltan off

Ogernting profitless before working capltal chuges
Drecrense in Znventories
{Inerease) fdecrense in rzade reczivables
{tnerensejtdecrense in other fimancial assets
{[nereasepderorase in other assers
[reroase =t rade peyabies
[rereasel{deerease) in ctber lighilities
[oerenseffdeerease) in provisions
Tnererse in other financink labs it

Cash generated Iromy{used in) operations
[acoms taes (pald) f refunded - oet
Met cash generated fean{used in) operaling setivites

B. Cash flows from investing achvities

Perchase of proporty, plaot aod squipmen: and iotasgible assels
Loan given Lo bolding cewpony
Bepuyment of jouo rom holdiog cumpany
Bunk depusils malured
Bank dzposils mode
Interest received

Nct cash 1 fromd)

i in) inveating

C. Cosh Duws leem Muadebng wctivities
Eorrowings avalied during the year {net of upfront inweres!)
Repayment of hormewings during the year
Advanee reecfred loom hoiding eompeny
Advanee repaid to helding compuny
Finance cosls paid
Met cash generated from{used in} financing acrvidces

Met increasei{decrence} in cosh and cosh equivalenis (A+B+C)
Cash and cash eguivalenls al tme heginning nl Lhe year
Casl and cosh egubvelents af the end of the vear

Motes bo Statemeot of Cush Flows

L. Components of Cosh ond cash equivalents

tash on hand
Budtarces with bumis
- U TUCTEAL LIEnUTLS

il. Muvenesi io berrunings

Ason | Aprll 2021

Dagrowings availed dusing she year (ol alupdranl ioecest)
Horrowings repaic during the year

Fioanee coul expeuse

Finanee cost paid

Equity compozent of conventible-PTK ohligation (Refer Moce 17)
Ckher wom zach adjosimest

Ag on 3 March 2022

Ason | April 2020

Beruwings availed duniog (be vea
Finarer cosl expense

Finaree vosls paid

Mg om0 darch 2021

* Dociudes currenl abuilies e oo -eurees boroew idps,

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended

3 dureh 2021

fii.  The Blawement of Cash Flows has been prepaced in accordance with (he Todineet Method' os set nut in the Tod A8 7 "Siarement of €nsh Flows".

The notes [rnm Mote | e Mot J8 form an inwegral part ol these linanciz] siaiements,
As per vue report of even date attached
For BS R & Co LLP

Charterad Ao
ICAI Firm Teeisiraien Mo, 101 248% AW 1000122

Yihrum Ldvani .
Partner e e
Membership Moo 08765

Plage; New Delhi
Crate: B4 Septeenber 2022

Ayadd &

SAMHI TV Business Hotels Privete Limited \/\,/\
PN

njnt_h_f:: firn
!Di.l'ﬂ‘mr
Ta: NRETI0R1

Place: Gerugram
Duate: 15 Szptembizr 24122

r
H
i

(543.649) (558,172}
106,245 117,761
[ER1 Be
520,429 oAl
(TRI0L 1359,654)
2,130 132
(14,400 .
19,358} .
465 W75
(34,756} (101,679
mn? 2,143
(18,379 [0
(2.479) 18,530
(17,158) INFE]
03,308 20,581
153,918) 13,226
155 (24721
114169 {218y
(58,708 (19,709)
2628 1,931
156,170} (21,700)
(919 [+
1903,547) 56,764
500 .
142,499 7,734
1172,500) (AT
433 1,329
{5346,960) 62,541
4,315,500 LI EA]
12 543,731) -
A50,000 -
LR, S0y -
£ 06, By (126408
1,066,403 186,408)
113,252 [45,468)
1Lt 56,579
124,264 11&%:
Aa af Az at
M March 2022 31 Mlarch 2021
[ 480
123,637 10,531
12-1364 11,011
Harrawings* Total
A.558,#59 2,134,259
4.3135,500 4,313,500
12,543,731 (2,343,731
£20,32% SR
(706,866) 1706 865)
(877,700 (8777007
11,478) 12,478)
3264313 3,264,313
Barrowings® ‘Total
1296176 2,3%48,176
40400 40,000
148 450 143 49)
[126,408) [ 126,411
558,259 1,558,250
=, For azd on heald ol Boff; of Directers of /’

Ta Chakralbreny
Directar
DIM: IRS3424

Place: (eruyram
Crate: 14 Septerrber 2022

('om)Imy Kecrmpa
Mumhersaip Ne.: AZ3560]

Place: Grerugram
Dunte: 14 Seplember 2022
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SAMHI ¥V Busincss Hotels Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees {'000), uniess otherwise siated)

1.1 Corporate information
SAMEII IV Business Ilotels Private Limited (‘the Company®) is a Company domiciled in India. The
Company was incorporated in India on [5 February 2011 as per the provisions of Indian Companies

Act and is limited by shares.

The Company is a hotel development and investment Company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent,

Presently, the Company has two hotels under it (Cowrtyard and Fairfield by Marriott, Bangalore) which
are operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. Also, refer note 42 for
going concern basis of accounting used by the management.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Direclors on
14 September 2022,

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Ttems Measurement Basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair Value

Equity component of convertible PIK obligation § Fair Value

D. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ITnd AS requires management to make
Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilifies, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures, Uncertainty
about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to
the carrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estitnates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.




SAMHY JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

B

ii)

iii)

iv)

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
stutements:

Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and cquipment and
intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of propetly, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlock, expected future
cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition, known technological advances. The Company reviews
the usetul lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the
end of each reporting datc.

Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations {gratuity and compensated absences) are dctcrmined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions aboul these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. Also, refer note 38 for further disclosures.

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recogpition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses, deduetible temporary differences and MAT credit available, to

the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Currenl and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.




SAMHEI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maych 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000), unless otherwise stated)

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumplion in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

-1t 1s expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right Lo deler settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Termos of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not alfect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial asscls/liabilities respectively.
All other assets/ liahilities arc classified as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purposc ol current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Measurement of fair values

A number of (he Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company’s finance team has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including [evel 3 fair values, and
reports direetly to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third partics to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

+ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities.

« Level 2: inpuls other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly {i.c. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

+ Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable
inputs).




SAWVIHI JV Business Holels Private Limited
Motes to the financial staiernents for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amaunts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

3

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hterarchy as the lowest {evel input that is signiticant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

TFurther information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 38,

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Tf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subseguent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its beok value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses un existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

(Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset 1s derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis 1.e. from/ (up to) the date on which
the assct is ready for use/ {disposed off),




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

2)

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of asscts is as follows:

Asset Category™ Useful Life (years) | Useful life as per
Schedule IT to the
Companies Act,
2013

Building i 15-60 60

Computers and accessories 3-6 3-6

Plant and machinery 5-20 15

Furniture and fixtures 8 10

Vehicles 8 8

Office equipment 5-10 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the uscful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are
reviewed by managernent at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measurcd initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangiblc asset is carried at its cost less acoumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life (at present three years) or the tenure of the respective software
license, whichever is lower. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least
at each financial year end. If the expected usclul life of the asset is significantly ditferent from previous
eslimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derccognilion of an intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profil
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3) Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securilies issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial instruments are initially rccognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is
generally its transaction price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). However,
if there is a difference between the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose
fair value is based on a quoted price in an active market or a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets, the Company rccognises the difference as a gain or loss at inception {*day !
gain or loss’). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or loss is deferred and recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss over the life of the transaction until the transaction matures or is closed out.

Classification and subseguent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset {s classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- FVOCI — debt investment;

- FVQOCT - equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVIPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to cellect contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVQCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FV'TPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assels; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.
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All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCT as described above arc
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements o be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCT or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessmeint

The Company makes an agsegsiment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management, for instance the stated pelicies and objectives for the portfolio, frequency,
volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior perieds, the reasons for such sales and expectations
about future gales activity.

Financial assels: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the linancial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of moncy and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basie
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether (he contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset conlaing a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such thal it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers;

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash Aows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

prepayment and extension features.

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Financial assels: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gaing and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost | effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impainment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impainment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments [ These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCIL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI atecovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss. |
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Financial liahilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified ag at FVTPL il 1L is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FV'TPL are measured at fair value and net gaing and losses,
including any interest cxpense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain confrol of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized. '

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash Aows
under the modified terms are substantially different. [n this case, a new financial liability based on the
medified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new f{inancial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financia! liabilifies are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet

when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them con a net basis or to realise the asset and seftle the liability simultaneously.

Inferest free loans

The Company has provided interest free loan to its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans has been debited to
other equity in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised
costs and interest income is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Non-convertible debentires
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The Company has issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as financial
{iability in books and carried at amortised cost.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component, As the risks associated
with the underlying variable are nol closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has
been separately accounted for from the NCDs in other equity. The equity component has been fair
valued through profit or loss at each balance sheet date.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets.

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash tlows of the
modified assct are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial fiabifities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its termas are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially dilfcrent. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial asscts measured at
amortised cost,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financjal asseis carried at amortised cost, A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following cbservable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

it is probablc that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or
-the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses i.e. bank balances for which credit
risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
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significantly since initial recognitior.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date {or a shorter peried if the cxpected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months}.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk,

When determining whether the credit risk of a Financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Corpany’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in defanlt when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held}; or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Meusurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difterence between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
ont portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision malrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted tor forward-looking estimates. At
every rcporling date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sulficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
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to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
1s the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted (o their presentl value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to
the asset {or cash generating unit}.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation and
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

[nventories which comprise stock of food and beverages (including liquor) is carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the inventory to their
present location and condition and is determined on a first in first out ("FIFQ") basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs to make the sale.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be
recetved.

Service Exports from India scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market. The grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis at realizable value,

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required io settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows al a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
costs, Provigions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimales.
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8) Contingent liabilities

9

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that ariges from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more wncertain future events beyond the
conirol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recogmised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its
cxistence in the financial stalements.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

10) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs} incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition and/or construction of those tangible fixed agsets which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their infended use are capitalised. Capitalisation ol borrowing costs is suspended
in the period during which active development is delayed due to inferruption, other than temporary
interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised ag an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

11} Emplovee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee State Insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts, Provident fund scheme and empleyee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes, The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schomes. The Company's contributions arc recorded ag an expense in the Profit or loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is
less than the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the
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deficit payable Lo the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an assct to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securitics as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumnptions are recognized in the period in which they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit ar 1oss as past
service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The emplovees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in fiture service periods or receive cash compensation on lermination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months atter the end of the period in which
the ernployees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the bencfit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Corpany records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitiement. The obligation is measurcd on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
expericnce adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

12) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.¢. on transter of control of the
goods or service to the customer, Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Revenue from hotel operations

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revennue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, property management services, recreation and
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other services relating io hotel operations, Revenue 18 recognised upon rendering of the services and
sale of food and beverages,

13) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on (he date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipls
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

Tn calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is caleulated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial assef, If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

14) Accounting for foreign currency transactions
Transactions and balances

Foreign cwrrency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the prefit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded ag an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
or loss, within finance costs, All other {oreign exchange gains and Josses are presented in the profit or
loss on a net basis.

15) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax, It is recognised in Statement of profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the  year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of  current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or recetved after considering  the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. 1t is measured using tax rates {and tax laws} enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
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the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and setile the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits, Deferved tax is not
recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a businesy combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
at the time of the transaction.

Deferred lax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available, Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporling date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset curreni tax
liabilities and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and asscts on a net basis or such
tax agsets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Segment reporting

Qperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The Holding Company’s Chief Excculive Officer has been
identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CCDM")

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to
the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that
engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.
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18) Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period.

Dilufcd EPS is determined by adjusting prefif or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity

shares, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

19) Expenditure

Expenses- are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and
liabilities.
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AInterrst free lenn
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SAMHIL JV Business Hotels Private Limited
MNates to the finaneinl starcments for the year eoded 31 March 2022

(o] ctmennts are in findion Bugees (OR, undess aoveradse staged)

1

1

Inventories
(valieodd at e fowver gf cost v et realfsebie value)

Food and beyerapes

Current finanvial sysets - Trade receivaliles

As at
31 Wlarch 2022

Asat
31 Marel 2021

4,552 4,759
4,552 4,754
Asat Asar

31 tlarch 2022

31 March 2021

Unserured, considercd goad 26,540 B.E13
Unsezured, eredit impaired 1,355 1,212
18,204 325
Less: Allowance for eredit impaired ([,35%) (1,212%
26,842 8,113
a) For recoivables secured against borrowings, refer tn nore 19,
b) Tl Company's edposure to credit and currency cisks, and loss allowances relared to trade receivables are disclosed in note 38,
Trade recelvable agelng schedule
As at 31 March 2022
Gutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
4 ths - Maore thon 3
Farticulars Lessthan & | 6 months - | 1-2years 2 -3 yuars are Tan Total
manths year yenrs
{i} Undisputed Trade reccivables - censidered goed 21,409 4,604 431 - - 26,549
{ii} Undizputed U'rade receivables - credit impaired - 471 345 - 338 1,355
Totul 2i40% 5,080 L1786 - 530 28,204
As at 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than & | 6 months - 1 17 years Z-3years More than 3 Total
moths year yoars
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 4,388 1.072 2,153 - - 8,113
(i1} Undisputed Trade toceivables — credit irpaired - 673 - 535 - 1,212
Tutal 4,388 1,745 2,153 539 - 0,325




SAMIIT IV Business 1lotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 vlarch 2022

(Al amonnis are in fndien Rugees (000, unless otherwise stated)

12

13

14

15

Current financial assets - Cosh and cash equivalenis

Cash on hand
Balanees with banks
- 0Tl CUTTENL accounts

Current financinl asseis - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

Rank deposits with original maturity of morte than 3 months but fess than 12 months *#

* Ineludes interest aceried on bank deposits amounting to INR 606 {31 March 2021 - INR Nil}
# [ucludes bank deposits urnder lien amounting to INR 2,318 (31 March 2021 - INR Nil)

Current financial assets - Others
{Uinsectred, considered gond)

Unbilled revenue®

Other receivaldes

Goverement grant receivable #
Securiry deposits

# Ne of atlvance from customers of INE 3,977 (31 March 2021 - TNR 350}

As at
31 March 2022

As at
3 March 2021

627 480
123,637 10,531
124,264 11,011
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2,024
2,924 -
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
14,401 2,735
3,134 abd
- 13,878
2,873 2,132
20,458 19,409

# The Cumpany is availing export incentive under Service Exports frorn Iadia Scheme (SEIS). Under the scheme, the Company is entitled to receive SELS livenses based on
the anmal earnings in foreign currency. These licenses can be utilized by the Company or suld in the marker, During the current year, the Company has recognised income of
INR Nil (3] March 2021 — INR 209). Further, during the cucrent year, the Company has written off government grant amounting to INR 1,465 {31 March 2021 - [NR 9,252).

Other current asscts

{Thisecnired, vonsfdered good)

Staff advance

Advance to suppliers

Balance with statutory authorities
Other advances

Prepaid expenses #

# includes current portion of non-current prepaid expenscs amounting to INR [31 {31 March 2021 - INR Nil).

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

37 -
396 1,140
19,952 7487

5,031 -
5,549 5,833
31,165 14,460




AR

Wbk i Moaocelal slabvents fu g
LA cmeniere e im

L&

17

" b 2inwss ITcets 1 rivate [ lon i

r el A0 Mcch 162
SR andess arfern ise st

Mumber af shares

Evyairy shucr caplial

Authntised share capltal

A5

3L Alaech 2h2

Anwunt

Asar
A0 Murcl 2021

Numbcr ol shares

Aniouni

Tquity skares a2 INE 11k cach i1 11

Efio fon e
Juaieed, subicrlled and Fubly puid up
Lquity shares af INEL I each L34 7&0 A0y LT ARG L. 7000

lll,ﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ 247300 114,?:3:",0“"
u} Recuaciliutiva of e coulty shures outsiunding; of the beglnniog and at the end of reporting year

For e yeut ended Fur the yeor ended
M March 2012 A1 March 1021
Humbrr of share Aninund Nurher of shares Amann

Tssurd, subserlhed ond Fully poid up
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SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Linticed
Mutes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{4l amounts are fn indian Rupees (00, unless otherise stared)

18

1%

Non current financial liabilities - Others

As at
3t March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Payahle for capital asses 677 1,268
677 1,248
Mor-corrent financial liabilities - Borrowings As at Ax at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Term loans from fnancial institation (securcd)® (refer 't below) - 2,558,259
Non-convertible debeatures** {refer 'a’ below) 3,264,313 -
Less: Current masurifies of long-term borrowings (tefer note 22) . {36,728
Less: Interest azerued bur due on borrewings (refer note 24) - (9,803)

3,264,313 2,511,727

*inclucdes mterest accreed but not due amounting to INR Mil {31 March 2031 - INR 371,247y
**Includes interest accrued but not due amounting o INR 150,517 (31 March 2021 - INR Nily

5} Mor-convertible debenturcs (NCD's)

a. On 19 January 3023, Debearure Trust Need ('DTD'} was executed between SAMHI J% Business Hoteiz Private Eimited (‘the Company’}, SAMHI Hotels Limited ('holding
company’) and Vistra [TCL {[adia) Limited {* Debenture Trustec™), Basis aforesaid Debenture Frust Ded, during the curreat year, the Company has issued 4,100 unbisted, secured,
redeemable, noa-convertible debentures of a fiace vatue of INR 10,00,000 each, epgregating o INR 4,100,000 on a private placement basis to Sarvara Investient Fund [ on the
termrs and conditions set out in DTD.

b. Tause non-convertible debentures are secured by followiig:

a) a first ranking mortgage on 2l immovzble assets of the Company, both present and furure, inchuding the Company’s properties at Bengaluru.

b) a first ranking charge on all the movable asscts (curreat, non-current and movable Bxed assets) of the Company, both present and future, including but noi limited to:

i) movable properties includiog plant and machirery, machine spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicls and other non-carrent assers;

iiy the permitted investments which includes government securitics, fixed depasits in any scheduled commercial bank in Tndia, which {s not a lender to the Group, liguid mutual fond
debit schemes.

lil) intanpible azsets,

iv] all curcent assets of the Company, including but not fimited o the receivables ol the Cempany including cash in hand, investments classified as “huld for trading”, rw matcrials,
consumable stares and spares, book debts, operating cash flow and steck in trade, and

v) all investnients and bank accounts of the Company and monics I¥ing therein.

c} a first ranking exclusive charge over all rights and receivables of the Holding Company which includes all amouits reccivable by the Holding Company (whether as operational
payments or athorwise) from the Company.

d a first ranking exclusive pledge over the shares and securitiss constinating 100% sharcholding held by the Holding Company.

e} the Corporate Guarantees pravided by Barque Hutels Private Limited and Paulmech Hespitality Private Limiled in favour of debenture trustes;

f) all encurnbrances created or Lo be created to secure the Barque Hotels Private Limited Debentures (Barque Debentures), ranking pari passu with the debenlures and the Barque
Dcbenhures, other than the Promoter Guarantee issued by SAMHI Horels Limited {Pramoter) for securng the Bargue Drebentures,

¢. As por Debenture Trust Deed, return on nea-convertible debentures is surn of Cash PIK and Converiible P1E.

(i) At all times during the tetare of non-convertible debentures, the debenture holder is entitled to 3 minimum 1RR of not less than 21.24% per annum {i.¢, 19.5% per annum
compounded monthly).

(if) Cash PIK is an amount that would give the debenture holder u returm erual to 14.5% per annum compounded monthly during the term of debentures. Cash PIK obiigation on non-
converlible debentures is to be serviced at 1% p.a. payable monthly For the First & months, at 3.5% p.a. payable monthty from the commencement of 7th menth uati] the expiry of 12
menths and al 14.5% p.a, poyable monthly for balance term of 3 vears (ta the extent appticable) and rernaining obligation on redemption of dehentures,

(Ui} Convertible PTK is portion of accrued interest on the non-convertible debentures that may be converted into equity shares of SAMHI Hutels Limited {Huolding Company) in
accordance wilh 1 SAMHI shares allotment agresment daled 19 January 2022 hetween the Company, kolding company and debenture trustee.

{iv) During the current year, the Compueny paid debenture holder upfront interest of 3% of the nomingl valie of cach non-convertble debentures issued ax an additiona) intercst,

{v) After lack-in-peried for the non-convertible debenturcs of 12 months from the date of first dishursement Le. 21 Tarary 2022, these debentures are redecmable within 4 years at
the option of the Company or at the end of 4 years from date of first disburserent, Further, the non-convertible debonrures will be mandatorily redeemed within 30 days of
occurrence nf an 1PQ event,




SAMHIL.IY Business Hotels Private Lisited
Notes to the Minanciol statements for 1he year ended 31 Mareh 2022
(i o ave in fidian Rupees (000, inless oterufse stafed)

By T'erm Loan from fnencial institation
Sanction amosnts

Loan from PIIL Fininvest Private Limited - Tenm Toan TNR Wil {31 March 2021 - INR 2,100,000)
Loan from PHL Fininvest Private Lindeed - Working capital term loan INE 0L {31 March 2021 - TNR 420,008}

Terms of security
. Loans from PHL Finunvest Private Limited was secured by way ol
(i) First ranking pari passu charge, over propersy of Courtyard & Fairfield by Marriott, Bangalose ("Bangalore Project”) [under entiey SAMHI [V Bus:ness Horels Prvate Limited].
{if) First ranking pari passu charge, over property of Sheraton, Hyderabad (" Hyderabad Project") [under entity SAMEI Tlotels {Abmedabad) Private Limiled].
(1ii) First ranking pari passu charge, over Banpalore Project Receivables, Cument Accouat and Project Fserow Account.
{iv) First raniking pari passu charge, over Hyderabad Project receivables, Current Account and Project Bscrow Account.
(v First ranking pari passu charge by way of 100% Share Pledge of SAMHI JV Business Holels Private Linited.
{+{) First ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of the Promoter Bscrow Accounl.
{vii} Non-disposal undertaking from promoter for 1 80% sharcs of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited.
[iii} Secomd charge oo all azsets of SAMHI IV Business Hotels Private Limited.

Rate of interest and terms of payment
The interest rate facerual) for term loan from PHL Fininvest Private Limited is Piramal Prime § ending Rale (PPLR) less facility spread i.e. 14.05% p.a. as at loan closure date e 2l
Jamuary 2022 {31 Mareh 2021 - 14.05%). No interest payment is required for six months from the first disbursement date of loan. Thereafter, interest to be paid at a concessional
rate of 8% from the 7th month to the 36th month. Tnterest to be paid at PPLR less facility spread from 37th Month tilt end of the tenure of the loan. The term loan is repayable in 48
structured quarterly instalments commencing from September 2021, Accrued interest will be paid by the end of the 60th month from the fist disbursernend date of loan,

The interest rate (acerual) for RCF, struchured inta term loan in the current year, from PHL Fininvest Privale Limited is Piramal Prime lending Rate (PPLR) less RCF spread e,
14.05% pa. as ul loan elosure date i.e. 24 January 2022 (31 March 2021 - 14.08% to 14.05% p.2.). No intersst payment is requited for six menths from the first dishursement date
of luan. Thereafter, interest to be paid at a concessionat rave of §% ffom the 7th month to the 36th month, Interest t be puid al PPLR Tess RCF spread from 37th Month till end of
|k tenure of the loan, The RCF is repayable [n 20 smctured quarterly instalments commencing from September 2028, Acered interest will be paid by the end of the 60th Month
fram the first disbursement date of loan.

The tale of interest on the working capital term loan is 13% p.a. as at loan closure date Le. 20 January 2022 (31 March 202Y - 13% p.a.). The ferm lozn amount is repayable in 48
equal quarterly instatments after 1 year of moratorium from darc of first disbursement Le. 4 March 2021, However, there i3 ne meratorium for interest, It shall be payable at monthly
intervals,

All kans from PHT, Fininvest Private Limited has been repaid during the current year,

¢} The Campany did not have any confinning defauits as on the balance sheet date in the repayment of loans and intersst. There have been no materdal loan covenant defaults and
there has been no intimation from any Tender for wealling any loan facility.

4) Information about the Cornpany's exposurs fo interesk rate, forcign currency and liguidity risks is ineluded in note 33.




SAMHI Y Business Hotels Privale Limited

Mates (0 the lnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AR aminds are in Indian Rupees ('000), rnfess afferudse slated)

20 Mar-current Anancial fiabilites - Trade payables

Fat

n

P

Trucle prayalilzs

- tetal outslanding dues of micto enterprises and small enlerprises

- talal ouistanding ducs af creditns ather than micen enlerprizes and small enlemprises

A at
a1 Maech 2022

28,549

As at
31 March 2021

25,842

&) Reler nols 40 lar disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprses Development Act, 2006 (MEMED).

1) The Campany's exposure 1o currcney and liguidily risks related 1o trade payables is disclosed in natc 38,

Trade payables ageiny schedule

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding lur folluwing perivds Meum due date of payment
Purticulars Acerued expenses Les::ll::n L 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
(i1 Oihers - 18,425 10,202 122 - 28,849
Total - 18,425 10,202 122 - 28,849
As al 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date ol payment
Partlcuiars Accrued expenses | Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
yenr
(i) Others - - - B N _
Tatal - - - - - -
Nan corrent provlsians Asar Asat

Provision lor smployee benelits
Grutluity {Refer note 30

Compensaied absences (Reler node 300

Current financlal llabilittes - Boreowings

31 Narch 2022

31 hlurch 2021

452 635
365 106
57 Tl

Asar
31 March 2022

Al ot
31 March 2021

Curentl maturilies of long-temn bosrowings [ Refer note 19) - 36,729
- 346,728
Current financial liahilltics - Trade payables As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payibles
- tial mutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises 53 -
- tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micrw entemprises and swall enterprises 181,636 122,529
132,168 122,829
ay Reler nole 40 far disclesures under Micro, Small and bedium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 (M3h1EL).
by Refer note 37 [or dues o elated paries.
¢} The Company's exposare lo currency and liquidity risks celated to uade payables is disclosed in note 38,
Trnde payables agetng schedule
As at 3l March 2022
Outstanding for followlng perlods Mrom due date of payment
Particulars Acerued expenses | Less than I 1-2 years 7-3 years More than 3 years Totnl
year
(1) MBME. - 532 - - - 532
{ii] Okers 23,550 112,250 233 41,334 4,229 181,636
Total 23,580 112,78 233 41,334 4,228 152,168
Ag at 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Accrued vxpenses | T.ess than | 1-2 yeurs I3 vears More than 3 pears Total
Year
(1] Chems 12,530 67,78 42278 27 - 122,529
Tota! 12,530 a7, 728 42,278 193 - 122,829
Current Anuncial Hubllities - Gthers As b As ot

Interest aeerued bat not dus on bemmowings (Refer note 1593
Fanplayze reloted

31 tlurch 2022

31 blarch 2024

- 9,803
12,320 13,649
260 -
12,580 23452




SANTHT TV Business Hotels Private Limiled
Notes {o ihe financiat statemends for the year ended 31 farch 2022
A amarenes are B dndien Rupees PO00), wiless sthervize stae)

25 Other current linbilities

Advanee frem cuslomes
Stadysary dues payatle

2§ Currenl provisions

Provision for empleyee benafits
Gratuily (reler note 30)
Compensated absences {refer note 30)

As at
31 March 2022

Azat
3E March 2021

10,012 2,234
19,425 IT.121
20,437 19,355

Asar
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

254 87
Sdb ]
ROD 352




5AM 1S Tslness Hatels Privake Limited
Mutes to the financlal statzments for the yenr ended 3] dlarel 2022

FAN earorsity are fn Fedir Bapees £ 005, anfers o

il

herpiEs vhaied]

Revenue from wperations

Serbyy caf pratciects i agivic s

= Bnam revenue

- Frurd i hoverage revanus

- Recreation ard wils sevices

i'eoteact balances

‘The conirmet liakilifies peimarily relate o the advinge consileration recefved Erom cust

Fur dhe year suiled
31 Mareh I03T

Far the yrar euibed
314 March 2021

200,15% dTu1E
79,959 E[:XAN)
3,832 1.£26
133,580 5,257

Fur whicly pevenae is recagnized when the peefosmance obligation is over'se

received befuns U ceiated peclormanse obligetion is satished. This ncludes advaners veceived feam the eusiomen towurds roans

Fosd and breveragedprovisicn o handuet services.

The contract assels prirly relate do excess of revenue over mvicing (i.e. wntilled revenuz).

Conirael Tiabiticdes
- Adwinie O CWSIMETS

{Caniract assets
- Llabilled revenue

Reverue is

Asat
3 parch 2022

BOH2

14,4NE

jews doliverss. Advance colleciiun is ecopnized when payment is
sed e the performance vhligaton is met i.e. on room steysuls of

As at
M larch 221

2,14

T3

Wote: Considdering the nature of business uf'the Conmpany, Tl above contract libilites ave generally materialised 3s rovenus ond contrart agsers are eonverted intu susléliude eccivables within the same epaeating 2ycle.

Chher income

Incerest incoros from fnurcial easels wtaisemised cost
- boank, Jeposits

- on lean o lelding company

et gain on firir valuation of equity wl
Guin on modifizatiun of Rutneisl Nl
Goverannd grant

bl FIE clbki

Travision ne fonper cequined writren back
Tnlzrest on inconm
Misceilanzous i

* refund

Caal of materials consumed

Consurnplion uf foad wnd bevernges
Enventory al the eginaing of the year
Acd - Purchases

Inventary at Lthe nd ol the yeu

Lmployes henefits expense

i Tonus

Cantribticn to provident fumd and olee fards (refer 'z below)
Compensated abseoves (refer ' buluw)

Granity gapense (reler "o helow)

Htall welfurs expenics

a1, Dreftued contelbution plans

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For lbe yeur ended
31 Alarch 221

£58 EAmby
6,155 3B
L4400 .
16K
- g
. 243}
8y
269 -
101,738 42326

Far the veur caded
3I March 1022

For tha yeor ended
X1 March 2021

ERLE] .90k
31434 LI
[4,552) {4,759)
33,41 13,395

Far the year ended
31 March 2022

Far the year ended
31 March 2IE21

50.9%% S1ROC
1643 ain
TR -
20t 21
7,132 1.0%1
51,758 64,957

The Comgany makes contribulions, doiermined s o specified perceniage of enploves salarics, in sespeet of quatifying employees towards Provident Fund, Labour Welfure Fund and Emglayees’ State Insurance. which are defined

cemuribution placs. The Cengany b
Fend, Labear 4 e1lave Fund and

ute ] Tor the year aperepated 1o IKR 3,643 (31 Mandy 2027 - INE 3103 Alsu refer acte 35

b. Compensaled absences
L1s¢ principal nssumptions uzed in delzrmiining 2 cumpensJted absences burefil ubligation are 35 given below:

Partlculars

Discoonting rale [pa.)
Furure salary inerense (pao.)

c. Delined Denelid Plan

Far the vear cnded

A1 March 2E22
L
447
o

e wsligations ciher than o ke the specificd contributions. The conimibutives are eharged fo prefit or Soss s My accrae. The amocnt cecopmised s an expense o cds contributian tw Presvident

For the vear caded
31 Maced 221
%

4,54
5.5

The Campany bas o e beeedit gratuity plar. Lvery enplogee wha hns campleted five yonrs or more oF serdce gels a grutuity on degarturs it b3 days salury flast drawn salacy) fir each completed year of servive, The scheme iz nat

tunded.
The leNowing tahles sumemaries i congearnts oF net benedic expense recognized in prafie or Inss and smauns recopnized in e Bulancs Sheel for the suid plan:

a} Expense cecagnised i praft or fass

Particulars

Curvent service gt

[neerest cosl

Total included in "Empinyoe henefles expense’

b) Reniensurements cecognised direvily in oiher comprehensive imcome
Partlculars

Meut setwariol {gain)iloss revounizes i the year from:

« ¢laanyges in demagraphic assumpdinns

- changes in firanciol assumptiam
- elaiyges in e perience adjustmests
Ameont recopnized iy other comprehensiv

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Fuor the vear ended
31 darch 2021

152 113
3% 46
pi 171

Far the vear ended
4 March 2021

(3}

For the vear eoted
31 March 2021

1
143 17}
1ER 4




SAMET I Buciness Hatets Frivade Limitk
dates to the finanecal statements Jor the year ended 21 March 2022
AN crvoenits aee i Iociagr Rupees (00, anfens oihenwese siatva)

2] [ hangz in present vafoe of berefi obligaion
Particulars

Present Vale af okiigaricn 15 s the beginning of e yewr
Current service cust

Interzst cosl

Remeasuremerts of defined henefil abiliegiwsse jnsl of ax)
Renefits paid

Present vale of obligatien as ur the end of the year

d] Amnunts fo be recagnised in Balance shew

Furtlewlnrs

Present vilug o dwe deffned berefit ohligarion ot the end of ths yzar
Eund=d slaty

Met liability recognised in the Batunze Sheet

Moa-cumert
Curenl

t) The prineipal assampiions wied kn determining the grotulky benefit cbligufien are os given belpw:

Tartkeudars

Tconomie nssimptlons
THsguaning rale (p.a.)
Tuture salacy increase ()

Far the year ended
31 March 2032

For the year eoded
3 March Ju2g

42 B

162 215

kL] L)

128 4

[H:5) (133

T46 42

Asat Asat
31 Marel 242 31 flaweh 1021

6 941

i 243

il G553

234 7

Asal
31 Macch 2082
*a

457
5.50

The diseount rte is pererally bused upon thue murkel vl available on Goeerament basds ot e accaunting dite with i g chad malches that of the linhilitics.

Thie salary growrih rale takes accawat of inllation. senianty, prometion and sther relewit factors on long term basts.

Demagraphic assumptiens

Gelirement age {yeursh
Withdrawal Raie
Aprag

Up t 31 years

I'rom 31 4o k8 vean
Ahoane 44 yeors
lortality rupe

£) The Company hest patinot; of expenie for de net yeur is N 201 {31 March 2021
) Sensltivity analysis

Ruarcnably possible chanpges 21 the reporting dale tu e of 1l pelevant actuarial

INR. 1363

Thssrnry rule £0.5% movemen)
Tuhare snlary provwth (D35 mavement)

Falding wiher

Asat
34 dlarch 2122

064 Trdiun assured Hves
mortality {2013 - L)

Asat
31 March 2021
LY

34,53
5.50

Az b
31 Mlarch 2021

34

%
1]
bl
&l
100% [ndian assured lives
morality {203 - 14)

eonseanl, would have affeeted the desined benefis obligibien by Ov apgouncs shown helew:

For the year exded
1 Murch 2022
Inerease * Diecrease < Tngrouse *

For the yenr cnded
31 Morch 2021

Drecrenss *

(%] 7 1w
7 (] n

Althoopgh T anelysis does oot Izke acount of e Bull distribulicr of cash lows sapeeted nrder (e plan, it docs provide an appraximation of the senstlivity of the assureptions shuwr.

* Positive anihint represcnts inerzase in provision and negutive ameunt represenis deerdnse in provision.

by Maturlty profile of defined benefit obligaiton
Year

Aprnil 2022 March 2023
April 2023 - March 2024
April 2024 - March M25
Apf 2025 - Morch 2026
April 2026 - Muech 1027
April 2027 Mlareh 2022
Apnl 2026 onwirds

Year

Apeil 2021 - March 2022
April 2022 - March 2023
April 2023 - March 1024
April 2024 - vlarch 1025
Aprl 2025 - March 1028
Aprl 2027 cawards

[

Asat
3 Marel 2022

15l
Eull
07
EL]
18

THh

Asat
A1 atareh 20ty

57
ik}
11|

6

|17
941




EAMHI JY Business Hatels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements far the year ended 31 Mareh 2022
fAi] amounts are fin Tndian Rupees ('000), rmless otherwise stated)

31 Finance costs

interest expense on tinancial liabilitivs cacried ar amortised cost on

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

- Nan-convertible debentures 173,149 -

- Terrn loan from financial institution 308,861 341,455

- (thers 1,478 -

Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues 7,478 3,141

Other finance costs 29,363 3,855
520,329 248,491

32 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 105,850 117,316
Amortisation of intangible assets 395 195
106,245 117,711

33 {Mher expenses

Repair and maintenance

For the year ended
31 March 2622

For the year ended

31 March 2021

- Building 3,410 2,068
- Machinery 11,156 12,125
- Others 2,949 9
Advertisernent and buginess promotion 7461 5,642
Commission G845 5,088
Communication 1478 2.482
Congumption of steres and supplies 18,851 6,782
Contractual labour 6,807 2,358
CSR expenses (refer note 43) - 1,503
General adiministration expenses 2,376 1,482
Insurance 2,210 3431
Legal and professional charges 93,213 27,429
Loss on foreign exchange uctuation {net) 2,180 £33
Management and incentive feey 9121 6.699
Miscellaneous expenses 6,473 3,713
Goyvernment grant written off 1,465 9,252
Payment to auditors* 1.842 1,539
Power, fuel and water 31768 15,041
PProvision for bad and doeubtful debies 143 RE ]
Rares and taxes 23,353 26,109
Training expenses R7 835
Travelling expenses 6,306 2,215
247,994 141,301

*Payment to anditors
Statutory audit 1,800 1,400
Reimbursement of expenses 42 119
Other services - 20
1,842 1,539

34 Earnings per share (EPS)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Net loss atiributable in equity shareholders (583,649) {713.381)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period for calewlation of basic EPS 124,780,000 124,780,000
Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the periced for calculudion of diluted EPS* 124,780,000 124,780,000
Maminal value of equity share (TYR) 1o 10
Basic earnings per shars (INR) (4.68) (377
Dhilutes) eamnings per share ([INR) {4.68) {3.77)

ing potential cquity shares have un anti-dilutive effect on EPS. Henee, the same have not been considered for calculation of Dituted earnings per share,



SAMHT IV Buslness Hotels Private Limited
Maotes to the finnncial sialemenls lor the yesr ended 31 March 2022

(AN amacinis are in Indian Eupees (000), nafesy etherwise stated,
7

¥

36

Coutingent liabilities and commitmenis

{to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilitics

a. In Fehruary 2019, Supreme Caourt of [ndia in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considerad to measure obligations under The Employees’
Provident Funds And Miscelianecus Provision Act, 1952, The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application of judgement
retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periuds, During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company had made a provision for
provident fund contribution fur the year 2018-19 in the books of accounts amounting to INR 4,452, During the previous year, based on legal advice, the Company has reversed the
provisien made for the period April 2018 to February 2019 amounting to [NR 4,160

b. During the previous year, the Company had received a notice under Section 148 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 for assessment year 2016-17 on grounds of escaped assessment,
During the current year, the Company has received favourable order in respect of this notice.

¢. The Company has received a notice wnder Chapter V of the Finanee Act, 1994 {"Finance Aot} for the periad PY 2014-15 to 2017-18 (upto June 2017} on grounds of excess
availment of CENVAT credit and short payment of service tax involving an amount of INR 9,283 along with interest under Section 75 of the Finance Aer, 1994 along with cgual
penalty under Rule 15 of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 and Section 78 of the Finance Act, 1994. The Company has filed a written submission denying all altepations made in the
notice before the Commissioner of Goods & Services Tax (Appeals) which is pending for dispusal. Based on the merits of the arguments put forward, the Company is of the view
that the outcome witl be in its favor and no provision is required to be created in the books.

Operaiing Segments

The Holding Company’s Chiel’ Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ({CODM'), since he is responsible for all major decisions w.rt. the
preparation and exceution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of aty new facility. CODM has exumined the Company'’s
performance from product and peographic perspective and has identificd a single business segment i.e. "Developing and running of hotels”, hence na specific disclosures have been
made.

a} Informaiion abont preducts and services
The Campany primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels", thersfore produet wise revenue diselosure is nat applicable.

b) Information about geographical areas
The Cornpany provides serviees to customers in Indin, Further, there are no assets located outside India.

¢} Tnformation about major customers {from cxternal custemers}
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would armount ta 16 per cent of more of the Company’s revenue.




SAMHI IV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the Bnaocial stutcinents for the year eoded 31 March 202
CAN amensats ave fn Indinn Rupees (000, niless otheritse stated)

37 Related party disclosures

ay Related party 2nd nature of related party reietionship where control exlsts:

[Mature | Name of related party |
|Halding Company | SAMHI Hotels Lintite {formerly Jnown as SAMHI Hatels Private [imitcd) |

b) Related parties with whom transactions have talien plaec doring the corrent year and previous year:

Deseriptlon of rel hig Name of related party
Hedding Company SaMHI Hotels Limited (Formerly knevwn as SAMHI Hotels Privats Limited)
Fellow Subsidipries CASPIA Hotels Privace Limited

Argon Hatels Privale Limited

SaM HI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Darque [{otels Prvate Limited

Paulmerh Fospitality Privare Limited
¢} Related party transactinns during the current yearfprevious year;

Pardculars Helding C, ¥ Fellow Subsidinries
31 March 2(22 31 Mareh 2021 M March 2022 31 Moreh 2021

Legal and professional charges
3AMHBI Hatels Limiled 77 466 17.051 - -
Interest income from fl inl ngsets at amortised cost
SAMHI Horels Limired 75,435 38,644 -
Loan to holding y ot emortised cost
SANME Hotels Limited LY, 543 - - B
Repayments of loen by Holding Company
SAMHI Hotels Limited 6,300 56,799 - -
Advanee received
SAMII Iotels Limited #30,000 - - -
Advanev repaid
SAMLIT Hotcls Limited 845,500 - - _
Gnin on carly repayment of loan by holding pany
5AMHI Hotels Limited 4,38 37,823 - -
Reimbursement of expenses
SAMHI Hatels Limiled 2,592 914 - -
CASMA Hotcls Private Limited - - 4,232 450
SAMHI Hotels { Ahmedabad) Private Limired - - 4,553 324
#Argon Hotels Private Timited - - 4,636 1,158
Initial recognitiod of eguity © t of convertible FIK g
SAMITL Elotels Eimited £77,700 - - -
Net pain on f2ir yaluatinn of equity comg t of convertible PLK obligation
SAME! Holels Limited 14,400 - - -




SAMHI TV Business Hotels Private Limited
Mntes ti the financial statemnents for the year eaded 31 Muoreh 2022
(AN mnanants wre in Tecdion Ruprees COU0), weless otheriise etated)

d) Retared pariy balances as at year cnd

Parilicniars [[olding Cempary Tellow Subsidinries

M March 2022

31 Mareh 2021

31 »arch 2022

31 Murch 2021

‘Trade payables

SAMMNT Flotels [imited

97,016

19,850

CASPLA Holels Provate Limited

53

Argon Hotels Private Limited

33

SAMHI Hotels [Ahmedabad) Private Limited

308

Loan te E campany ot amortised cost

SAMHI Horels Limited

1,317,883

345,205

Capital rescrye

SAMHI Hotels Limited

32438

26,303

Conecessional interest of loan to g company

SAMHI Flotels Limited

610,540

B10,340

Current Enancial assls - huers

CASPLA Holels Private Limited

313

Equity comyg of coovertible PIK obligation

SAMHI Hotels Limniked

853,300

Trode recelvables

SAMIIT Hotels Limited

G035

SAMH! Hotels [Abmedabad) Puvate Limited

4468

390

Ca8PLA Haotels Private Limited

T14

4244

Arpon Lotels Private Limited

3,084

1.551

Druring the year, the Follow subsidiaries have provided security on behalf of the Company in respect of Non-Corvertible Debenture issued. (refer nate 19(4)).

During the provious vear, the fellow subsidiaries had provided seeurity For loan from PEIL Finvest Private Limired ll 21 January 2022, (reter noz 19(k)),

The mansactions will related patties are made on terms equivalent to those thal prevail io amn’s length ransagtions and within the ordinary cowrse of business. Qutstanding balances at

the year-end arz unsecurcd and are schtlement oeeurs in eash,

For the year eoded 31 Margh 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company has not recorded any impaitment of receivables relatng to amounts swed by related parties, This assessment is

undertaken at cach reputting period.
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3 Fiownelal insdruments — Fair values and rish management

A) Financlal instranments Ly calesery nne air valie

The beigw Lble suonuaeizes Ui judgements and Stinemes made in delenmining De e values of (he Fnanch
megisured of arccrtised eost 2ad Rer which s values wre disclszed ia Awe fingneial To provide an i
Company had cassified i fuancial sasiruments inea the dires lewels presenbed urdes 1he acsounting sivdard,

irstrusienns ahat ane 40y ceognized and weasured al fir value and ¢b)
aharnr thve veliability oF e ibpets used iv deceminig e wlee fie

Pactieulary A ul 31 March 22
Level of hlerarchy Fair ¥alov Fair ¥aluz Through | amorthed Cast
‘Through Frafil iler

[and Lisss (FYTPL]| Conprehensive
Inceme (¥ TOCN

Financlul assels

Man=cnrrent

[Laang 1 - - 1,317,347
Diliess - - 14,03%
[Currant
Trade iabl - - 26549
Caslh and cosh equivalents . - 124,354
Burk badoeees olver than cash and cash equivalents obuve - - 193 .
Oheia - . 20,458
Tolal inunciul ossets - - 1,509,217

|Finaneial Habillties

Man-corrent
Boriowinms 2 - - 511
Trade payaliles A N . 549
Cihers - - 77
Current ...
Trade payablas - - 142,063
Ciers - - 12,580
Talal financial Halilld, - - 3,494,587
Muegicilars Asat 11 Mureh 2021
Level of hivrarchy Fair Walue Fair ¥aluc Through |  Amorsed Cost
Thruugh Frofil Mler
ond Luss (FYTFL)|  Camprehensive
Income (FVTOLT)
Financial assels
Man-cerreni
Laxums 1 - - 45,208
Ehhers - - 17,555
Cnrrent
Trada cucaivables - - A 113
Cailv sad cash equivalents - - 1L.0E1
Diless - - |4 404
Takal Mnanciak assets - - Al1.333
Finoncial Liahilltles
Non-urront
Dodrowings 1 . - 1511727
Oihers - - 1.168
Current
Brrrowings 1 - - 36,724
Trade puyshlet - - 122.42%
Dlhues : . - - 5452
[ Totul Fnunclul Hubiild - - 2606405
Financlal assets and Wakilities measoced sl tmnedsad cast « Fale value measuremenls Aval Asat

31 haech 2012 3I hTarch 2021
Nopscurzent financlal assers
Moi-cenvent Jaans (Level 3; ® AW LIRS

® lidpeenents fir valie af lgan lo holding conpamny.

The Err valne of trad receivabled, Sobilled ravanoe, cash ane cash equivalenls, ather bank Balanzes, other ceren| financisl a5els, corged soisowings, bade payables and eilier ewrrent finanziol liabilities approdineaie Useic carcyiagg cmedel, die
1o their shar-rerm natus,

During 1 previoas yea, Isterest £z an Rol-curteil Borrowin ks wers 2quivalemt to as marked raté, $ich horriwing were cauiractad at Qoaring caess and canes wrere Teses 3¢ shamt intervals, Arcordingiy, (he camrying valhes of suek bovowings
cpprexinnales Fir vilue.

Tha carrving valus of non-cacrsut trude pi it of i aneieiosted fere cash laws wsing apprecbls discoont mre

ke appre gimate, the Fuly values s o the vapening dave, 25 Iese are cartizd sbanortesed cost el ame hased e the el presen

Fair witue af Lok d2posils Dncluled in sther pon-cursent Gnmeid dssets sod ledn to Balding company (itereal bearing ooy ane squivalent 1 dhein carry g ameunl, 1 dhe interest ke o them dy spoivalent 1 niavka: e
H) Measorement ef fair valucs

Tha different levels of Faic value bove e defined betow:
Eave, 1 Level | bigraechy ineludes Maueial insbuments measared usiog quated prices, This ulodes lad eonicy jnsligeenls, waded boods and ol ks o have guoted price. The fiie wilus ol all sqiily insorunsents fiveluding o ds)
weliich age: el in tha siack exchanges is valued vsing the elesing price as at the end of the reporting peclod.

Leyel 2t The flr value of finan
Ak Il A4 posdilile on endzy-ane

instrumenss s aee ol iradeel inoan astive marke (Fer zmaniple, Wided londs, ewce-the cauoner decivitives) s deteranioed using wabuation technicmes which masiznise the use ot chservablie marker data and rely
i estimates. €kl i ount inpuls nepined w e valwe an fosewment are ssevable, L instnenend s ieeluded in lsvel 2.

Level 3z IFone or more of tae slgmifeent Inpols i nes leeed on ubeervable market dar, the iastrucoeul i includsd in el 5

Therza hava been no 1mansfers th either direeeion fe abe years cnded 30 Aarel: 2022 awd 31 Mareh 2024,
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reared o dle Baanclal Aeareneid fac the year el
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Valuatlan technique vsed fo deccemine fale value
Sowitic valuaton eheiy s g o vidos Boeneisl ostnaaenla 2
= 1w Laie vl e loan e halding eompaty Vaieesn e loang i calenlotod based an casl fews discomined wsing 2ueren bending cace.

€] Tlnaneisk risk aamapenenl

Rl trgnreinend (Panewarlo

The Company’s 2stivities expase it to o varkty of [inescial esky: market rise (incleding foreign 2xehange cise and luerest sete 138k, coadit cisk and ligidity eisk.

 Compuny's Chisl Finanal OfMca under tie dieestiors ol the Heowrl of Dirscions impl firanizak m 2. The Compdry™s risk menueeaent pobioes are estabsshed 1o idendity and analpse
e Ty the Comgnny, In sel xpprspriale risk limits and eontrely, 15 ntonilag eisks and adbecance to limnies in eedar o minimize Use fio socisk impaet o7 such ciske. Fle risk ciaasgenent polizies and sysems ors reviews) regolarky o
rellect choges in markel combilion s aed Hhe Compang's iwh vities.

i pulicies aciuse the Com g

b Credlt risk

Credit risk 5 the risk af franzial loss 1 the Company il 2 custlanrer or vourtempanty W Ruaecial s ament fils L et it condractual ebgations. The sanying aosinl of fnae il o
Company has credit policies in plaee ornd the exposcres to these ciedit zisks ere manitwsd on an empaing bhatis

s Lepresent file matimon credis risk exposura, The

To cater 12 e cradit risk Fer balanees with panka. oniy Ligh raed benks ate asceyied.

The Company bas piven seasrily depasits le Clovesiment depirements and vendors for secuting servives Fom Uen aud ronist deposits or employee accommodzticas, The Comzany has loan recsivable balance sutslanding us at year 2nd from s
Lulding company, Furler, 1lke Company i recopnised wovernriect grapl 1eoaveable in sespoct al copnt inconlivo. The Comnpiny does ned espect any defGull rom these gartics anc acoondingly 1he rake of default is asghgible o nil. During ihe
year, t Ceanpary hos wrilen off govemmert grart amdunting 10 MR 1463 (31 Mozch 2621 — TN 9,253, Refer wowe 14,

In respecl 4F sl e lican geads reeiyabl illed rebenete, the Lotnpany Bes palicies in place to enswre Bat sales an zedso witl
Figlery, Salvs o ather customers ore made D el o2 by delin o2 condie cads oo sher pagmoe platfocens.

out collateral are mods prieeiply to travel agents and corporat: czmpanies with an appoprices credil

The Company establizhes ag alowanze for impdiiniant thad zepesanls il expeesad credil Tozses in respen: of trade receivables. The munagemant oses a simplilieé approach for e guopnse nf ramputadion of expacred crafie b e rade
receivables. T monisring custorr er eradl] rige, 4 ara prouped dita 1 Oueir erediv <h slies, neluding whesber (bey are an ivdividual or legal 2onity, et gevarapiival lecation, fodasioy and existence of previvw, szl

Py the year, e Conipany has made e wrle:ntfs of rade veeeivables.

Hlatnm of lass T
For thw year ended For the year ended
3 Alareh 2022 Al Mareh T01E
Opening balance 121z 1,133
Cliaogs in loss allowaace 143 b
Clisins halaner 1,155 1,212

il Liguidity rish
The Compnoy's npproacl o nzivgeinge liguidicy is 0 ensure, s B 3 poasills, that ie swill bivz solbicteo: lguiding: b oaeer is Labilities when Uiy wre due, urder boll: nornat and sivessed condisions,

Lahvierute: respunsibiliey lor lngnicily sisk manogenent rests with due halding conpany’s Board of Dircetars, @ hich haa corablished an opprapeate liquidity -isk management Famework for the managem=nt of thie Company's short l=n. stedivn
1zrn andd longebzrm funching arel Bguidicy rtagment iequaceients. eree nete 42 wiich cavers liguidity risk maragenent of the Company,

{a} Exposore to Hgoidity risk

The faliowing are the remaining cantracmnl morarries of financial liabilifies an the reporting dats, The amounts ars grass and undiscoun e

C 0 cash Nans
As a3l March 1012 Carrylng nmnunt Tratul 0-1 year 1-1 years 2-5 yrars Mlarc thao & years
Nuir-2unecit bareowings 1,164,313 425017 - - 4,250,517 -
Mor-curgenl Trads payablas LR A4.A28 - 14,613 - -
Uther nor-currenl financial akilitizs 677 - L - -
Curdent Trada prewalibe, PR ! - - -
Cther eurrent finanenl liabilizi 13580 12,580 - - -
3,465,597 4,481,671 194 851 5302 4,150,517 -
Cante selita] eis|s Biws
Asal 3 March 2021 Cariying amuiing Talal 01 year 1.} years -5 years Alare than § years
Moo current Iroasings LILTIT 3,528.138 - 55,E93 14,4650 LM AR
Osher nom=cuctent faancial lizbililies 1,263 1,464 - |,26% - -
Coarreal barrowings 148,729 36,718 36,72% - - -
Curreut Truds payaleles 121539 112224 123,839 - . -
Cher currene francial fiakilitizs 21452 13,452 11432 - - -
1,694,005 2,712,614 L3014 6,461 T4 4 1, T4k, 485
(b} Fluancing avrangeaients
The Comgany Tk wecess w dhe Glluwing sadaws borowing eilites ol the ad o e repocting periad:
Agar Asal
31 harch 2022 31 March 202F
Wackbng capioal lerm luaa - JE0,700
. 180,100

ik Markel risk
The Company i sxposed ta market sk primacily reloting 1o ths risk ofchangzes in market prives, such a5 forefgn exchange cubes and interast eales, hal will affeel dye Compiuy's expense o e valoe of its boldings of Goaweial insuments.

iv. Unrrency risk
The Cempany's exposurs o forigm curnency misk i oo account of pugalles on aeconar of epemlinre inocarrencies etbier tha she faacrional conzney of the Campary.
E xgicure b curpency rlsle

The Coripany’s expuinr: b Riceign cuerzocy visk on Uie eod oF the cporing peckod are as fllows:

As ot Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2021
USD In thuwsand U0 In thagsind
Financiad fiabifltier
Trade payables 407 A
BT 4
RLE S As
31 tlarch 2022 31 March 22
INE in thausaod INE in ¢howsnnd

Financial fiubilities
Trude puyuble; G115 4732

1,159 47,034
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Semyllvily wiulysis

il gLl kg 2k FuC b ladion Rigpe warency st year end wonld Bave allected the mue
clowe. This anlyzsis wssumes San all esher vaeiales. io parZoular Dileeest roies. ren

s sl

ir canstan: an:d ggnares sy impact of Riescas! sales apd porckdses.

{Prufiliipes

et ol Anzicil it g senandealed i feeien cweenay aud affzcied eguity and prelit or boss by e

Equicy, aot af tax {Incrzaseideerease

Firect In IMI2 el Weakening Strenplhening Wenkening
AL Mareh 1022
LISEI 1% anavanenry HE Wil 812 1612}
[1¥) {613) 4§12 [4113]
(Prefitposs Fyutry, met of tux ¢lncrease)'dec reasy
Effect [n INR Ntrenpiliening Weakening 5 heni Weokening
AL Mareh 202l
USD{ 1% movemenl] 473 [EXE]] 1M (354)
i3 {473 154 354}

w. Intarest rale risk

Trterest s risk s he risk that dhe Gair vabue or falore cash dlows of o Bnoel instoument wili Dot ecduge of cilanges o macker jtlencs) rales. The Company’s expasure to the risk of changges in muchet int2neat mikes cetaies primiril v ta Qe

Conpany'i bwrawings with Neating inlzrest mlas.

Tls Company vaiunaces diz inearest rotss in the markel coow regular busis to eeplors e epeior. of 2financing of Wiz beerewngs of the Conepeiy. Mateover, the Campany's
ia tha azjustments of is acrawing eosts in ane vwith the markat inlerest,

Expusure to lnderest rade rlsk

Tl ieterest zaee 2rofile al e Conpany’s inlersst-bearing tinzocial indrmwents iz os fllews:

Fized-rute [matrumenis

crrenl barrowinags wrg linkevd 1n Hoating interest ratcs, theechy resulting

Nominal amaoune
3L Maech 2022 31 Maych 2021

Mon-cusrent fnancial assets - Loan | Refer Mole 31 {0,543 -
Finarciul asels - imk deposits (N1 11613
Finartial I tics - Borreawing aen-cenvetibbe debeonee {Refor Hote 1% b, LOHDLDCHE -
Vartahle-rate instranienis
Fraaecul ibLles - Borrawdng Moancial irstivetion seeared (R Mo 19 - rinT
Fair walue sensithity analysis far yed-rate instruments
The Copmy dows nac acosml e 3y fised-mis finangial assecs or imangial linbilitics a1 Gie velme theaugh peafie or I2as. ThereDre, 2 change i innenest fete ol the reportng 2ot swauld el allect profil aross.
Seaslivity analysis for varinhle.rate instromandy
A e nsolatldy possitle ciange o 100 Lasis points in inlerest mies at e repertng Lame wild have increazed Y dee reased | equing and prafic or less By e annaunts shawt below. This amilysiz nasumes et atier vagilshe, raafi, o som.
| Pradlijilang Equity. net of tax
(inereasa)fdecrease
100 bps hncreac 100 bpt decrange 100 bps Increase {4} bps deerease
As at 31 Murch 2022
Finamclal liabilitie: - - : -
Asat 31 March 2021
Frrancial liabiliea 14,362 [24,362) 15,211 ERTN]
HI6 (14,362] 13,231 (18,731

{Capital Management

The Cama s policy e L manitiin a arne g cipitak st 10 as 1o ntialain inveslae, credicar and markel confi€zncs snd Lo susta fatucs devslopment ef the business
The Brard of Tiresters uf e Cutepitny secks o n:aipsdn s aluace bevweeat the higher sotucis Ahat might ba pssible with highar Lavels ¢f borrowing wnd the
The Company momigar npial oy Inan o vadue (LT el ensore Lrat die Tzan Lo volue dos rolinerease beayand 65% an any giver: reperling date al groep el

anttpzs and cecueity affieded Ly a spond eepitai positian.

Asa part of it cupitel amaagenien| pulicy, tke Compony enstres compliznee with all covenants and ofher cagieal regueraments related Lo ragulatory ar con of eakerial

o the Campans, Alsa refer nede <1,
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41

42

43

Disclosures wnder Miceo, Small aud hledivm Enterprises Develapment Act, HH6 (MSMED)
As at Ad ut
31 Mlarch 2828 3 hlarch 2021

Dues o mierw, small and medium suppllers

The ameunts remaining unpaid te micee avd small seppliers as at the end af the y2ar:

Paineipal oracust 19

interest thereen 11 -

ThLe amount of inlrest paid by the buyer a3 per the Micta Small and dadium Enterprses Development Act, 2006 {MSMED AcL, 10083 - -
The amounts of the payments made 1o micra and small supplers beyonc the appeinted diy during each accounting e . -

The amount oF interesl dee and payab’e far the pericd of delay in meking payment (which havs been, posd bur beyord the 2ppainted day - -
tluring the weard bot withowt adding the ntetest specified weder MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of inireat weerued wnd reecacning wipiid ot G eod el eoch acoolnting yea. (K -

The amount of furter inferast remainiog due and payodie wwan b1 e succeeding years, until such dae when the interest dues pa ahove are - -
actually paid 1o the small enterprise far the porpase of disallowance as o deductible expendilurs unde: seclion 23 of ths MSMED At
2004,

The management fios identified enterprises which have provided goods and services W tee Campany and which qoality under the dedinition of micio ad st enteiprises, as detined under Micro, Smail and Mediom
Enterprises Developnieat Acl, 2006 (MSMED). Accordingly, the disclosws i rzapesl of the amaounts payable to sush emenpeises a5 at 31 Maceh 2022 and 37 tdarch 2021 has beer made in the financial stakmerls
Lrxsed e i r2eeived ung availablbe with the Company,

During the cusredt year, SAMHI Haotels Limited (e holding compary) has allocated = «penses amomnting 1o INK 77,466 (31 Macch 2021 - INR 17,0517 o3 Compane’s shiare of projecl axpenses amd other ost ineun2d.

MNote an gaing concern and [mpaci of COVID-1

The Cumpiasy s felng ligutdity challenees which bave besw aceentuated by uneenainey due to COVID-19. The Compuny hos positive net wartk ol INE 390,624 a5 a0 31 Maech 2022, incwired a et loss of INR 533,649
during the year ended 51 March 2022 and, as of that date, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its sunenl assens by TNR 3, Az on 31 March 7022, the Company has issued Non-Coavertibie Tiehentices and
there are o repayments due Witlin 12 ceaths of the balaoee sheer date, The Company has cosh and bark balanee of INR 124,264 with iras an 31 Moreh 2022 which will assist for meeting its short term labilities for
naxt £ mondis, The business of the Company wag impreted during the year an acoount of OOV During B months of e year, the Compiny wi d sofer dua iz subseq wavas of COVID
14 and eanscguent lnckdnwns in several states aeross the country.

Wilh increased vaccinalions and 1 dualion in number of cases and ezsing of all restrieons, e Company hus withessed a cecovery. Stwling from Q3 FY 2022, he Company has demaesteated improvad
business performance in erms of Averuge Reom Revenue (ARRY wod Qecupancy levels. ARR uml Oceupaney levels i Q1 FY 2033 have s2aehed INR #,13% and 84% respestively, Lhe Company has continoed
fineneizl anl operatioral sippoc providad (o e Company by SAMHED Hotels Limited (the kaldwg company) and bas projected to genecate profis Gom its operations.

The Company has nssessed the possible impict of COVID-19 in preparation oF the Guanctal staemants, ineluding kot not limited to its assassmen of liqnidity and poing eancem assumption, reenverahle valees wf i
financial and non-fiwancial ass20s and impact on revanlds and costs. Tre Campany has considzrad intemal and extermal snerces of infarmation and has performed sensitivily analysis on e assumptions wsed and based
OR CUITEHE €5EiRyaIcs, expects to recaver the carrying amauat of these assels. The impuet of COVID- 19 may be diffepent fran tal cstimated 13 at e date of aperoval of tese finaneial statemnents and de Cempany will
continue 1o elosely owailor ay material ehamess b e economic condidens,

In vicw of the dhove, e munagement and the Board of Directars helieve that the Company will be ahls to mect all 18 cunlroeloal cblipatives and Labilites a5 and when Qwy Ball $us in near fomoee and aecondingly, these
financiul stalements ~uve been prepared on o going conzem busiz.

Curparate suciul eespoasibliily

Ax per Seetion 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, 2 Company weeting the Jppdicability threshold, is reguired 1o spend at least 2% of iis average aet profi far dhe immedialely peceding three financial years an o puite
social responsibility (CSR) aetivitis,

During e year erded 31 Margh 3022 the Company did gl bave any obligulien far sperding money on CSR, activilies.

Dratails of CSR axpnditure ans as follows:

For the year ended Far the year ended
31 hlarch 2522 3I Blarch 2021

{a) Lirass sgount requiced 1a be spent by the Company dazsing the year, - 150
18} Amount spent during the yedr o

0] Cunatructian * acquisition ot wty asgat - -
i) On puiposes cliar thas i) abows - 1,203

Tatal auatnt spend | cash - 1,902
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Maw standards and interprerations, mat yet adopred

ittty of Coporate Affiss (“MOA" notifics now stundard o amendments to the exisling staoduds wider Companics {Indian Accotming Stardards) Rules 23 i
aetded the Campunies {Indini Accounting Stunlucds) Amzndinant Rules, 2022, applicable Fom : April 2022 us oelaw:

st from tme w tinee, 0o 23 darch 2022, MOA

Ind AS 107 - Reference tn Conceptual Framewerk

The amcndrenls specily Gar 10 qualily tor reeagniticn as pacl of applying the 2cquisivon methad, the identifisble assets asquired and lishilities &ssuwed ulse meet the delinions af assets and lia®
Conceptual Frameswork for Einancial Reporling usder [adian Acsounting Stacalards (Concepeal Framewark] issued by the Insditute uf Clurtersd Accountams of Tadia at the acquisition date. TLese changes do not
sigmifiantly ehange the requieruents uf Lad AS 193, The Company doss uat expeet tha amenden 10 have any impact in s Enaoclal sarments.

Ind AS 14 - Proceeds before bitended use

The amenthnsots ainly proliait an cnlily frem deducting fram the cast of property. pland and eqaipnenl amolts teesived foom scling items prodused while the company is preparing Lhe wsset lor is bnended use,
Tslead, an entity will recopuise such sales proceeds ond related cost in prafic or boss. The Conpany dows 0ot expect the amendments © have any impact bn its recognition of ils prapecty, plat wod equipment in it
fmanzial stalements.

[nd AS 37 - (nerous Cantracts - Casts of FulBlling o Cnntraet

Tue amendments spezify e s the "cost of Aulfilking” w canlracl vemprises e “costs thal relale dircetly i the contract’. Casls Uan velate deectly lo = cunleact can sither be incremental costs of fiulfilling thay contrac:
{oxnmples would Ee direet labour, materials] or an allucatios of etler costs that celate direetly to fulflling The d is jally a claitization and the Campany decs ot cxpest the amendmenr o luve
amy siglient impast in its fnancial steatnents,

[nd AS 18Y - Annual Improvements to Lnd A% {2021)
The anendment clarifies which fres an gutity inzndes when it applizs the (0 percent’ tesl al’ [nd AS 109 in 3ssessing whelher 1o deracognise a financial Kahifiy. The Company does nol expect the amaadment 1o have
oy siguificant impact w iz Boancial stakements.

Ind A% 106 - Anvual Lmprovements i [nd AS {20217
The dracnts remave the il jon of the reimk L f leasebuld improvements by Lic lessor in ardar ta resndve any putential jor, regurding the Leeabwzent of lwase incentives that might arise beeacse of
ow leise incentives were deseribed i dhal dlesiration. Tha Company dags nat expact e amendmant 1o hevs any sigtificant npael in il fnaccial statements.

Ratins as requleed by Schedule 10T to dhe Companies Ast, 213

Ratly In Hmes/%s Numcrator 1] t 31 Dlarch 2022 31 March 2021 Redsons for variance

Current mitio his significantiy
impraved a5 cazh and cash
equivalents has iscredsed in
Current Ravic In Himmmey [Totul Curiate Asicts Total Current Liabilities LG 13,2 {the cuerent year coimparad
Last yewr &s o resull al issoance
ef non convertible debentures,

Dlebi equity tatio has
decreased due W increase in
Aeft nnd immpras eument In other
equiry due Lo losses in Lhe
urment yeer,

[ch:-Fquity Rutie I Licewes Tednl Borrowings Tatal Equity .3 na

Dbt Saivies coveraps mlio
his improved due 1o an

Deb Service Covorags B [l imes Pty tore faame son| e S RO 0 e s depataon
ht 5 e Cwvaiage Bato LM deprsction, amodisation and cix Tl up.. Rty JEN . 14 hnanscle u?gts,dn:pm.mtmn\
boITOWIngs famartization, and tax.
Ratur on £guity ratio has
decreased due o improvement
. . . N . : it other equity on accrant of
% 33 LREr b d ! Ecuity -234% -

Retum oo Equiry atie [ Loss afier Average Tatel Equity 2345 215% cedualian i bnsses In the
CAITEnl Y2t

Invaniory twrnuver ke ¥ Tri tinics A NA DA NA | NA

Trade recevables mmover
ratsa ingreased due 1o

Trade Receivables mmaove I times R avonues trom operations Average Trade Recaivablas 15.2 6.8 |ingrease in revent Bom

oparions,

Shue2 the varianes s 255 than

i 25% there i requiremenl L
Cost of marerinls consumaed + Olher) e thare 15 o req u

Trade payables MEnQwer min Tn tmhets sypenses Averags Trade Payables 1.7 1.3 [dischnse the reasan,

B Dactgase is dye o increade o
. : - a . . . favenue from apzrlions dus

Mzt capital fumaver sato Ir. Hmes Revenue Som cperations Averug: working capital 2.7y {404y

e it provement in Ensingss,

Wert profit rtin improved dus

Nt prafil ratie % Loss after tax Revere them operetions B -8z |t improvament in business
aciivity dunng tha yeur,

Return cn cupital emaleyed
improrved due to o decrease D

Capial Employed : Tangible Nad lass belng inlgrest and Lues

" it n o5 heturs i 1 et ' 9 . “a

Rty on Capital <mploved In" Loy helors inlerest sd laxes Worth — Toud Burcowbng h #h|duning th... L
account ab ananoease in
buginess activily

Retw oh invesliments # In %4 A MA M A M4

The Campany has not praseated 1ha Following ralios dus o e rzasons gven below:

E Inventory eurnever raa: Since the Company holds inventory for consumplion o the saviee af faod and bevelages and the propoctinn af such invdnuery iz insignificant t lota: assels.
¥ Relurn on lnvestrrents: Since the Company irvests surplus teotparary funds in short-ieen bank deposits and the iveme gendianed Fom it is insigniticant 10 ot rewenue,




SARDOI FY Tusioess Tawels Pelvate Lbmited
[ades b the Minancial statements for Bie yeae ended 31 dEarch 2432
Al wanrenierts e 0 Boelinn Bapees (O, adess oliernivg itoted)

46 Orther statwdory mlormation

- Teze Cowpany dees nol Live auy Beniul properly, wlizie any procesdize s besn initiated or pending against the Cempady Jor helding sy Benam propey.
ST
- Tee Company dees nol buve any churges ur sulisloclion wlich s vet o be wrisleed with BOC bayeanl e slatulecy paiied,
- T Company nas mot traded or invested in Crypta emimersy or Virwal Curreney during the finzneial year.

Lompany dias nat have any mpsaations with companics struck nfi;

- Tre Company 5w =i wdvanseed or loaessd or invesled Wnds W ey other persun(s) or eotity(ies ], ineluding Feeisn entitizs (Lot limies) with dhe ding thar the 1 hary shall:
Capdirelly or indicectly l2nd o invesl in ather persans of awlilies idenrfad in any manner whaisesver by or gn behalf of the Compeny {UNimale Benehciaries) or

(biprovide any guacsntes, sesurity of the like to or on beladf af tie Liktimale Bzne fici

- T Company has ~ob wny such 1ransaclion which is nol recorded in the books of aceounts that T:as been surmendered o dischused as incane during the year in the e assessments ander e Deace Tax Aol 1961 (such
g, search prswvey or sny adier relevant provisions of e income Tux Ael, 19615

- Tee Company Fas =0t bean decared a wilful defunlier by uny bank or other lender {23 defived under the Cornpanies Acl. 2013), in2ecordarce with the guidelines on wilfis! defaubiers.

- The titi deeds of unovable propenty disclosed i the Bnansial stabements iwe held in the name of the Corpany, Howevar, origisal tiths deeds ure under lien with de'nenruce trustee Fer the nonconvertibls debuoniures
isaned by the Compary during the coment vear.

47 Theeugh Bssue of amy-convertihle debentures [refer Mot 19), Lhe Compary has rectived an amount of R 4,100,000 an 21 JTaneary 2022 frow Savar Fund i (“Mon: ible del holdary, €in 21
Fanuary 2022, g3 pee tha reims of Debenturg Trust Deed dated 19 Janoary 2022, out of the oforezaid amaonm, Bs, 903,543 hag heen utilised towsrds penviding loan tn SAMITT Hotels Limited {“holding compaoy™y far
repayment oF jts existing harrawings fram Piramal Capital & Housing Finnnee Limiled.

Wich regpect o alorezald ansction, e kvt provisions of (e Companies Act. 2013 has besn comphed with and arther, the wansaations ave ot vilative ol the Provention of Money-Laumnlering A1, 2002 (18 of
20031,
Details of non-converible dehenture bolder and holding company see as helow:

5 No, Party nanmc Mature of relationship Dietails

PAN - AAYTSITRIA

Address - Servara Tovesiment Fund [

{Crescences, Groced Flow, G-Block

Flot Mo, 38 & 39, Behind MOCA Gronnd

Bandra Karl: Complox, Bandia {East)

Bdurctbni-400 051

£ - USS0INTA0OFLCITIRLA

Adrress - Cuspia Hatels Delhi, District Centre Crossing,
Opp. Colaxy Toyata Cuer Ring Road,  Baidepue,
Shalimur Bagh. New Tlelhi-t 10058

Sarvara Tnvestment Fund | Man-converthle debenture hoddar

=)

SAMHAT Motels Limcted Halding compay

4B Change in classification

Furawast 1o ame~dment in $zhedulz M ta the Comrpanies Azt 3013, effective fram { April 2021, the Campany os madified the classificalion of security deposils rom "Lodns” to "Others” in firsrcial assers and Cavem
maturitics af Inng-temm borrowings frnm "Others” tn " Borrowings" in Current finaneial liabilitizs. Comparntive amownts in the notes to Qi fnancial stetemems were reclassified for sonsisency,

As per earlier f B
per Revised classification

reported
Assels
Mon curcend assels
Financial assets
T.oans EREL 345,108
LALI 1,615 17,5595
Liabilities
[Current [fablfitles
Fininclal Hubilities
DBosrowings - 36,72%
{Othare 60.18] 231451
(Mring the yzar ended 31 harch 2022, the Company has sevised the presentation of cenain notes 1o e financial law banar p Comparuive in the nates to 1he financial saiements were
U rehussificd for consisnen 18
As per carlter Revised chassifcativn
Teparted
{h|0ther Expenscs
Cumnimicion 3300 82
Miszelloneous exponses 389 57
(i [Ocher Expenses ~
Rates asd faxes 14,150 16,10%
Finance costs
Interest zopense an deluy in depasil ol stutory ducs - 3,14]

The nates fram ute 110 Mate 48 lommen integml part of Gese furancisl stut= e,
As parour report af even date attached

For BER& Ca 11K Farand o belall af Board of Tirectors of
Charrtared Accousimats :/) SAMIT IV Bllslne!sl!j}jroh Private Limirad
RN e
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. e
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CHM: 058 308!

Pluze; Gurugram
Dyare: 14 Seplemiher 2022
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Plate: Gunugrm
Duate: 14 Seprewber 2022

A 'q]a;m (HUET]
S ey Secretar
tembership Mo 15541

Place: Gurumam
Trate: B Seprember 2012




